
 
A meeting of the STANDARDS COMMITTEE will be held in MEETING 
ROOM 1, PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, 
HUNTINGDON on MONDAY, 6 JUNE 2005 at 4:00 PM and you are 
requested to attend for the transaction of the following business:- 

 
 

 Contact 
(01480) 

 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   
 

 

 To elect a Chairman of the Committee for the ensuing Municipal Year. 
 

 

2. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 10th 
March 2005. 
 

C Deller 
388007 

3. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or prejudicial 
interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any Agenda 
item.  Please see Notes 1 and 2 below. 
 

 

4. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN   
 

 

 To appoint a Vice-Chairman of the Committee for the ensuing 
Municipal Year. 
 

 

5. A CODE FOR THE FUTURE - CONSULTATION PAPER ON THE 
REVIEW OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS  (Pages 5 - 
16) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Director of Central Services and Monitoring 
Officer requesting the Committee’s views in response to a Consultation 
Paper on the review of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

C Deller 
388007 

6. ETHICAL STANDARDS - IN YOUR HANDS  (Pages 17 - 18) 
 

 

 To confirm attendance at the Fourth Annual Assembly of Standards 
Committees. A report by the Director of Central Services and 
Monitoring Officer is enclosed. 
 

C Deller 
388007 

7. APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION   
 

 

 Director of Central Services and Monitoring Officer to report. 
 

P Watkins 
388002 

8. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 

 

 To resolve  
 

that the press and public be excluded from the meeting 

 



 
because the business to be transacted contains exempt 
information relating to the personal circumstances of particular 
persons. 

 
9. OLDHURST PARISH COUNCIL - ALLEGED BREACH OF CODE OF 

CONDUCT  (Pages 19 - 58) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Director of Central Services and Monitoring 
Officer regarding the allegations made against two Councillors serving 
on Oldhurst Parish Council and the recommendations of the 
Investigating Officer thereon. 
 

P Watkins 
388002 

   
 Dated this 27th day of May 2005  
 

 

 

 Chief Executive 
 
 

 

  
 
Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent 

than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, a 
partner, relatives or close friends; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any 

company of which they are directors; 
 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 

securities exceeding the nominal value of £5,000; or 
 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has 

knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member’s personal 
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of 
the public interest. 

 

Please contact Ms C Deller, Democratic Services Manager, Tel No 01480 388007/e-mail:  
Christine.Deller@huntsdc.gov.  if you have a general query on any Agenda Item, wish 
to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information on 
any decision taken by the Committee/Panel. 

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the 
Contact Officer. 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
 
 



 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 

 
If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports or 

would like a large text version or an audio version please contact the  
Democratic Services Manager and we will try to accommodate your needs. 

 
 

Emergency Procedure 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency 
exit and to make their way to the base of the flagpole in the car park at the front of Pathfinder 
House. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the STANDARDS COMMITTEE held in 

the Cabinet Room, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon 
PE29 3TN on Thursday, 10 March 2005. 

   
 PRESENT: Mr D Bristow - Chairman 
   
  Councillors Mrs B E Boddington, P J Downes, 

J A P Eddy, Mrs K P Gregory, A Hansard, 
I R Muir and J Taylor. 

   
 IN ATTENDANCE: Messrs D L Hall, D Macpherson and G 

Watkins. 
 

    
 APOLOGY: An apology for absence from the meeting 

was submitted on behalf of Mr D Pattisson 
 

24. MINUTES   
 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 9th December 
2004 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

 
25. A CODE FOR THE FUTURE - CONSULTATION PAPER ON THE 

REVIEW OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS   
 

 A report by the Director of Central Services and Monitoring Officer 
was submitted (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
containing suggested responses to questions raised by a 
Consultation Paper published by the Standards Board for England as 
part of their review of the effectiveness of the Code of Conduct. 
Members noted that the deadline for responses to the Consultation 
Paper was 17th June 2005.  
 
Members were of the view that the subject matter required more 
detailed examination than could be afforded at the meeting and were 
concerned that all District Councillors should be given the opportunity 
to comment on the Consultation Paper and the proposed responses.  
Therefore, the Committee suggested that all Members of the Council 
be asked to consider and comment on the content of the report of the 
Monitoring Officer and to indicate in their responses whether they 
would be interested in attending a workshop or similar event to 
discuss possible changes to the Code.  Given that the consultation 
period expired on the 17th June, the Committee agreed to consider 
the report and responses received at a Special Meeting convened for 
that purpose. Whereupon, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that the Director of Central Services and Monitoring Officer 
be requested to invite all District Councillors to comment 
on the Standards Board for England Consultation Paper 
on the Review of the Code of Conduct for Members and 
on the suggested responses by the Monitoring Officer to 
the questions raised; 

Agenda Item 2

1



 
(b) that in formulating their replies, all Members of the Council 

be requested to indicate their interest or otherwise in 
attending a workshop or similar event on the Code of 
Conduct review; 

 
(c) that, in the event of a lack of interest, the Director of 

Central Services and Monitoring Officer be authorised, 
after consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of 
the Committee, not  to proceed with the workshop 
arrangements; and 

 
(D) that a Special Meeting of the Committee be held at 4pm on 

Monday 6th June 2005 for the purpose of concluding a 
response to the Consultation Paper on behalf of the 
District Council to the Standards Board for England.  

 
26. PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS - APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION   

 
 The Committee were acquainted via a report by the Director of 

Central Services and Monitoring Officer (a copy of which is appended 
in the Minute Book) with an application received from Alconbury 
Parish Council for dispensation to allow six of their Members to speak 
and vote on matters relating to the Alconbury Flood Alleviation 
Scheme and any future related planning applications should they 
arise at meetings of the Parish Council. 
 
Having regard to advice received from the Monitoring Officer, the 
Committee 
 
RESOLVED   
 

that dispensation to speak and vote be granted to six 
Members of Alconbury Parish Council for the period ending 
30th April 2006 after which time applications for newly elected 
Councillors would need to be submitted should it be 
considered necessary.  

 
27. MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT - STANDARDS BOARD 

NOTIFICATIONS   
 

 (Councillor P J Downes declared a personal and prejudicial interest in 
the following item by virtue of his involvement in one of the cases 
referred to in the Standards Board notifications and left the meeting 
for the duration of the discussion thereon.) 
 
By reference to a report by the Director of Central Services and 
Monitoring Officer (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
the Committee noted that the Standards Board for England had 
decided not to take any further action in relation to an allegation made 
against a District Councillor but to refer for full investigation two cases 
involving Members of Bluntisham and Oldhurst Parish Councils.  
 
Further to Minute No 19 of the meeting held on 9th December 2004, 
the Committee noted that the Councils’ Insurers had confirmed that 
existing policy arrangements would meet any legal cost that might 
accrue from the defence of any claim for defamation or damages 

2



awarded against an Investigating Officer or any other person 
mentioned in a report by that Officer in the event of an investigation 
into an alleged breach of the Members Code of Conduct locally.    

 
28. CURRENT ISSUES   

 
 A report by the Democratic Services Manager was submitted (a copy 

of which is appended in the Minute Book) which updated Members on 
the progress of the Select Committee Inquiry on “the Role and 
Effectiveness of the Standards Board for England” and provided 
information on the fourth Annual Assembly of Standards Committees 
to be held in Birmingham on 5th and 6th September 2005. 
 
Having noted that the Annual Assembly would focus on the work of 
Standards Committees within local government and that the 
Monitoring Officer would confirm attendance at the conference at the 
next meeting of the Committee on 6th June 2005, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the Democratic Services Manager be authorised to 
reserve places at the fourth Annual Assembly of Standards 
Committees Conference to be held in Birmingham on 5th and 
6th September 2005 for the Chairman and Vice-Chairman, a 
representative of the Opposition Group on the Committee, an 
Independent Member and a Town and Parish Council 
representative (or their nominees).  

 
29. PROGRAMME OF MEETINGS   

 
 RESOLVED 

 
(a) that a Special Meeting of the Committee be held on 

Monday 6th June 2005 at 4 pm; and 
 
(B) that the programme of meetings of the Standards 

Committee in 2005/06 comprising 7th July, 8 September 
and 8th December 2005 and 9th March 2006 be noted. 

 
 

 

 

Chairman 

 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



          
          
          
STANDARDS COMMITTEE     6th June 2005 
 
 
A CODE FOR THE FUTURE – CONSULTATION PAPER ON THE REVIEW 

OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 
(Report by the Director of Central Services and Monitoring Officer) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Reproduced as an appendix to this report is a paper by the Director of 

Central Services and Monitoring Officer, which contains suggested 
responses to questions raised by a Consultation Paper published by 
the Standards Board for England as part of their review of the 
effectiveness of the Code of Conduct.  The deadline for responses to 
the Consultation Paper is 17th June 2005. 

 
1.2. The report was tabled at the meeting of the Committee in March but 

Members were of the view that because the nature of the subject 
matter concerned all District Councillors they too should be given the 
opportunity to comment on the Consultation Paper and the proposed 
responses prior to its consideration by the Standards Committee   At 
the same time, the Committee requested the Director of Central 
Services and Monitoring Officer to canvass Members’ interest in 
attending a workshop or similar event to discuss possible changes to 
the Code. 

 
1.3 This meeting of the Committee was convened especially to consider 

the report in the light of any responses received from Members. 
 
2. CONSULTATION WITH MEMBERS 

 
 2.1 In accordance with the Committee’s instructions, the Monitoring 

Officer canvassed Members of the District Council for their views.  Of 
the four replies received (from a total membership of 52 Councillors) 
two Members expressed an interest in participating in a workshop 
event but had no separate comment to make; one Member recorded 
his satisfaction with the draft responses to the Board but did not wish 
to attend a workshop and lastly and whilst not wishing to attend any 
separate session one Member commented as follows 
 

“there should be some form of cost sanction against complainants 
who raise matters that are proved to be either false or 
unwarranted.  Each complainant should be made to prove he/she 
has discussed the matter with the potential offender and/or 
Officers of the Council.  If this were the case, many complaints 
would go away”. 

 
2.2 In view of the lack of interest, and after consultation with the then 

Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Committee, it was agreed not to 
proceed with the workshop arrangements. 

Agenda Item 5

5



 
3. RESPONSE TO THE STANDARDS BOARD FOR ENGLAND 
 
3.1 Accordingly, the report of the Director of Central Services and 

Monitoring Officer is re-submitted to the Committee for the purpose of 
concluding a response to the Consultation Paper on behalf of the 
District Council, by 17th June 2005. 

 
4.  RECOMMENDATION  

 
4.1 In the light of the summary of the Board’s Consultation Paper 

 appended hereto, the Committee is  
 
RECOMMENDED 

 
  to approve the suggested responses to the Consultation Paper on 

behalf of the District Council. 
 
  Background Paper 

 
Standards Board for England Consultation Paper on the review of the 
Code of Conduct for Members – January 2005. 
 
Contact Officer: Christine Deller, Democratic Services Manager 
Tel:  01480 388007 

6



                                                                           APPENDIX TO AGENDA                   
STANDARDS COMMITTEE        ITEM NO 5 
 

CODE FOR THE FUTURE – CONSULTATION PAPER  
ON THE REVIEW OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 

(Report by the Director of Central Services & Monitoring Officer) 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Code of Conduct was introduced in November 2001 and came 

into force for all authorities in May 2002.  Following three years’ 
experience of working with the Code, the Standards Board for 
England announced their intention to commence the consultation 
process to review the Members’ Code of Conduct at the third annual 
assembly of Standards Committees in Birmingham last September.  
In his speech to the Assembly the Rt Hon Nick Raynsford MP 
stressed that the Government did not want to dilute the basic 
underlying principles of the Code of Conduct but rather seek to 
discover what may be learned from practical experience of working 
with it. 

 
1.2 Following a series of workshops and meetings in the interim, the 

Standards Board have identified the following key areas for review 
and shaped these areas into 29 questions –  

 
♦ public interest defence in relation to disclosure of 

confidential information; 
♦ the duty for Members to report misconduct by colleagues; 
♦ the line between public and private conduct; 
♦ personal and prejudicial interests; 
♦ registering interests. 

 
1.3 The deadline for responses to the consultation is 17th June 2005.  

Following the consultation, the Standards Board for England will 
make a number of recommendations to the Office of the Deputy 
Prime Minister for consideration with a view to any changes to the 
codes being agreed by the end of 2005.  The Board intend to publish 
a summary of responses received. 

 
1.4 Further consideration will be given to the 10th Report of the 

Committee on Standards in Public Life and to the outcome of the 
House of Commons Select Committee Inquiry into the Role and 
Effectiveness of the Standards Board for England as part of the 
consultation exercise. 

 
2. CONSULTATION 
 
2.1 The purpose of the consultation is to review the effectiveness of the 

Code of Conduct and to explore ways in which it can be simplified, 
clarified and improved.  The Standards Board for England have 
indicated that they would welcome opinions on sections of the Code 
not covered by the Consultation and issues not raised. 

 
 
 

7



2.2 The Board have invited responses to the consultation paper by way of 
29 questions.  The questions are set out in a leaflet enclosed with 
Members’ copies of the Agenda.  For ease of presentation, suggested 
responses had been drafted sequentially for Members of the 
Committee to consider.  There may also be other issues on which 
Members may wish to express views. 

 
3. THE QUESTIONS 
 
3.1 The General Principles – 
 
 Question 1 – Should the ten General Principles be incorporated 

as a preamble to the Code of Conduct? 
  
 Question 2 – Are there any other principles which should be 

included in the Code of Conduct? 
 
 Comment – the Code of Conduct is founded on ten general principles 

set out in the Relevant Authorities (General Principles) Order 2001 
derived from recommendations by the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life.  The ten general principles underpin and steer the 
provisions of the Code of Conduct and are fundamental to its 
interpretation.  The Local Government Act 2000 requires the Code of 
Conduct to be consistent with the general principles but it does not 
currently incorporate them.  They are:- 

 
 Selflessness, honesty and integrity, objectivity, accountability, 

openness, personal judgement, respect for others, duty to uphold the 
law, stewardship and leadership. 

 
 Suggested Response – Yes – the General Principles should be 

included as a preamble to a revised Code of Conduct.  The principles 
represent the standard to which a Member should aspire and would 
help to provide a context for the rules of the Code itself.  Indeed in 
any training activity undertaken by the Monitoring Officer, the 
presentation commences with an explanation of the general principles 
as an introduction to the Code.  As the general principles have, to 
date, been integral to the interpretation of the Code it is strongly 
suggested that they should formally be incorporated within it.  The 
general principles are wide ranging, so in our view there is no 
requirement for the addition of any extra ones! 

 
3.2 Disrespect and Freedom of Speech 
 
 Question 3 – Is it appropriate to have a broad test for disrespect 

or should we seek to have a more defined statement? 
 
 Question 4 – Should the Code of Conduct include specific 

provision on bullying ?  If so, is the ACAS definition of bullying 
quoted in the full consultation paper appropriate for this?   

 
 Summary – Paragraph 2 (b) of the Code of Conduct states that a – 
 
 “A Member must –  
 
 (b) treat others with respect”; 
 

8



 This applies to Members only when they are carrying out the duties of 
the office to which they have been elected or appointed or when 
representing their authority in their official capacity.  The Standards 
Board have decided to focus on paragraph 2 (b) because of difficulty 
in interpreting the general requirement and the subjectiveness of the 
term “respect” the understanding of which often varies widely 
between individuals and between ethnic, local and regional cultures. 

 
 Suggested response –  No, making the definition of “disrespect” more 

specific may mean that it could become more inflexible and would not 
reflect the variety of views on what is “respectful”.  Practical 
experience of interpretation of the Code would help clarify the term 
and the context of its use.  It is also arguable that Members are 
elected to comment on matters of public concern provided any 
comments made do not breach discrimination legislation or become 
overly personal.  It is an important feature of local democracy that 
Members continue to be entitled to express their views albeit within a 
legislative and code of conduct framework. 

 
3.2.1 Summary - Bullying – The Board have received a number of 

complaints alleging bullying by Members of Officers and fellow 
Members.  The Code of Conduct does not contain a specific provision 
to address bullying.  To date, the Board have dealt with complaints 
alleging bullying under paragraphs 2(b), 2(c) and 4 of the Code of 
Conduct which cover the need to treat people with respect, not to 
seek to compromise impartiality and not to bring the Authority into 
disrepute.  

 
 Suggested response – Yes, the proposal to incorporate a definition of 

bullying into a revised Code should be welcomed to assist Ethical 
Standards Officers and Monitoring Officers in identifying bullying 
behaviour and to send a clear message to Members that behaviour of 
this nature will not be tolerated.   

 
3.3 Confidential Information 
 
 Question 5 – Should the Code of Conduct contain an explicit 

public interest defence for Members who believed they have 
acted in the public interest by disclosing confidential 
information? 

 
 Question 6 – Do you think the Code of Conduct should cover 

only information which is in law “exempt” or “confidential”, to 
make it clear that it would not be a breach to disclose any 
information that an authority had withheld unlawfully?   

 
 Summary – Paragraph 3 (a) prohibits Members from disclosing 

information given to them in confidence or that which is acquired and 
which the Member believes to be of a confidential nature.  

 
 Suggested response – Yes, in the light of the new Freedom of 

Information requirements, the Committee might consider that it is 
sufficient to state that a Member should not disclose information 
which was lawfully confidential or exempt under existing legislation.  
This would mean that it would not be a breach of the Code of 
Conduct if it was demonstrated that the decision to treat a matter as 
exempt or confidential was unlawful. 

 

9



3.3.1 Summary - Regarding the public interest defence, the Board believe 
that the intention behind the Code of Conduct is to protect information 
that is properly confidential, not information that it is convenient or 
expedient not to release into the public domain or publicise.  
Members have a duty to ensure good governance of the authority and 
to protect as confidential only information that is properly confidential.  
The Board acknowledge the call for greater openness and access to 
information, reflected in the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  

 
 Suggested response – Yes, under the Freedom of Information Rules 

a local authority must seek to balance the need to maintain 
confidentiality where appropriate and the public interest in disclosing 
information.  When applying the Freedom of Information Rules, the 
presumption should be towards the public interest.  If the public 
interest has not been considered properly, the decision to treat a 
matter as confidential may not be lawful.  In the circumstances, the 
Committee may take the view that the Code of Conduct should 
contain an explicit public interest defence for Members who believed 
they have acted in the public interest by disclosing confidential 
information.  However, the question arises as to the need to clarify 
what is the “public interest”.  In that the principles encourage honesty 
and integrity, Members should not be constrained by the Code when 
they believed they should have disclosed information for public 
interest reasons. 

 
3.4 Disrepute and private conduct –  
 
 Question 7 – Should the provision relating to disrepute be 

limited to activities undertaken in a Members’ official capacity or 
should it continue to apply to certain activities in a Members’ 
private life? 

 
 Question 8 – If the latter, should it continue to be a broad 

provision, or would you restrict it solely to criminal convictions 
and situations where criminal conduct has been acknowledged? 

 
 Summary – paragraph 4 of the Code of Conduct states that, ‘A 

Member must not in his official capacity, or in any other circumstance, 
conduct himself in a manner which could reasonably regarded as 
bringing his office or Authority into disrepute’.  This provision applies 
to Members both when on Council business and in their private lives.  
Allegations of disrepute which have arisen in the public domain, such 
as while a Member is on Council business, have been far more 
straightforward to deal with than those which have arisen in Members’ 
private lives.   

 
 Suggested response – the Report of the Committee in Standards in 

Public Lifes Tenth Inquiry, published in January 2005, recommends 
that the Code of Conduct should not cover matters which are wholly 
unrelated to an individuals official capacity.  The Committee may wish 
to consider to what degree the actions of Members in their private 
lives should be scrutinised and subjected to discipline under the 
Code.  Members’ private conduct may only be of concern if it is likely 
to compromise the reputation of the authority.  Perhaps this provision 
should continue to link a Members’ conduct in their private life to its 
relevance to the performance of their public office.  However, is there 
a type of conduct, within the wider area of private conduct that should 
be covered by this provision of the Code?  The general principles 

10



require Members to uphold the law and to act in accordance with the 
trust that the public is entitled to place in them.  Do those cases of 
unlawful behaviour sanctioned by the courts or the police, such as 
criminal convictons, police cautions and regulatory infringement 
undermine the public’s confidence in the Members ability or fitness to 
carry out their official duties.  If the answer “yes” there has to be a 
distinction in those cases where the offence has not been proven.  

 
3.5 Misuse of Resources  
 
 Question 9 – We believe that the Code should prohibit breaches 

of the publicity code, breaches of any local protocols and 
misuse of resources for inappropriate political purposes.  Do 
you agree? 

 
 Question 10 – If so, how could we define inappropriate political 

purposes? 
 
 Question 11 – Is the Code of Conduct right not to distinguish 

between physical and electronic resources?   
 
 Summary – the Code provides that Members must, when using the 

authority’s resources themselves, or authorising others to use them, 
abide by the authority’s requirements, such as its resource protocols.  
Members must also ensure that the resources are not used for 
political purposes other than those purposes necessary for Members 
carrying out the duties of their office.  Resources includes land, 
premises and any equipment such as computers, photocopiers and 
fax machines.  The time, skills and help of anyone employed by the 
authority are also resources. 

 
 Suggested Response – Yes – the Code in this respect is clear 

enough.  It should remain absolute and not allow a lower threshold for 
some resource use.  However, local protocols rather than the Code of 
Conduct should set out specific requirements for Members’ use as 
practice varies between authorities.  It is considered that it is not 
necessary to distinguish between physical and electronic resources 
because all resources should be treated similarly.  A breach of the 
Code would occur when there has been a breach of the Authority’s 
own rules in that respect.  

 
 NB:  The Board is considering the issue of a model protocol for 

resources.  In the interests of clarity and consistency across the 
legislative framework, reference in the Code to the restrictions under 
the Local Government Act 1986 and the Code of Recommended 
Practice on Local Authority Publicity and to the misuse of resources, 
and particularly Officer time, for inappropriate political purposes would 
be welcomed. 

 
3.6 Duty to Report Breaches 
 
 Question 12 – Should the provision of the Code of Conduct that 

requires Members to report breaches of the Code by fellow 
Members be retained in full, removed altogether, or somehow 
narrowed?   

 
 Question 13 – If you believe the provision should be narrowed, 

how would you define it ?  For example should it apply only to 

11



misconduct in a Members’ public capacity, or only to significant 
breaches of the Code?   

 
 Question 14 – Should there need to be a further provision about 

making false, malicious or politically motivated allegations? 
 
 Question 15 – Does the Code of Conduct need to provide 

effective protection for complainants against intimidation, or do 
existing sections of the Code of Conduct and other current 
legislation already cover this area adequately? 

 
 Summary – The Code of Conduct requires Members who have a 

reasonable belief that a fellow Member has breached the Code of 
Conduct to make a complaint to the Board. 

 
 This requirement has resulted in complaints being made which might 

otherwise not have been reported.  However, the Board have also 
received a number of complaints which it believes were politically 
motivated and malicious, rather than reflecting legitimate concerns 
about potential breaches of the Code. 

 
 Suggested Response – The spirit of this part of the Code should be 

retained as it gives effect to the principles of openness and 
accountability.  It is in the public interest that misconduct and 
corruption are reported when there are proven grounds for doing so.  
However, the Code should acknowledge the seriousness or 
significance of some breaches in comparison with others and the text 
proposed by the Board would address this point using the words 
“knows or is informed” rather than “becomes aware”.   

 
 A Member must, if he knows or is informed of any breach of the Code 

of Conduct by another Member which he or she:- 
 
 (a) reasonably believes to be serious or significant, or –  
 
 (b) on the basis of the facts known to them at the time, should 

reasonably have concluded  to be serious or significant; 
 
 make written allegation to that effect to the Standards Board for 

England as soon as it is practicable for him or her to do so. 
 
 Members should be released from the duty to report potential 

breaches of the Code arising from acts in a Members’ private life.  
This would not prevent a Member making an allegation for breach of 
the Code in their private life under the paragraph relating to disrepute.  
To ensure consistency of standards across the country and to avoid 
potential conflicts of interest, it is essential that all cases continue to 
be referred to an independent body ie. the Board for investigation in 
the first instance. 

 
 It is not in the interests of Members, the public or the Board to spend 

resources on receiving and considering false malicious allegations.  
The Committee may not wish to support the suggestion that there 
should be provision in the Code to deter Members from making false 
malicious allegations.  The provision could act as a deterrent for 
Members making complaints where they do have legitimate concerns 
in case subsequent investigation of the complaint finds the Members 
concerns to be unfounded.  A preamble to the Code of Conduct 

12



giving advice as to the legitimate use of this part of the Code would 
be preferable.  In terms of protection for whistleblowers, the Code 
does not seek to prevent serious concerns from being raised and if a 
Member does seek to intimidate a complainant these matters can be 
dealt with through other provisions of the Code such as disrepute and 
disrespect. 

 
3.7 Personal Interests  
 
 Question 16 – Do you think the term “friend” requires further 

definition in the Code of Conduct? 
 
 Question 17 – Should the personal interest test be narrowed so 

that Members do not have to declare interests shared by a 
substantial number of other inhabitants in an authorities area? 

 
 Question 18 – Should a new category of “public service interest” 

be created, relating to service on other public bodies and which 
is subject to different rules of conduct? 

 
 Question 19 – If so, do you think public service interests which 

are not prejudicial and which appear in the public register of 
interests should have to be declared at meetings?   

 
 Question 20 – Do you think paragraph 10 (2) (a – c), which 

provides limited exemption from the prejudicial interest rules for 
some Members in certain circumstances, should be removed 
from the Code of Conduct? 

 
 Question 21 – Do you think less stringent rules should apply to 

prejudicial interests which arise through public service and 
membership of charities and lobby groups? 

 
 Summary – Paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct requires Members 

with a personal interest in a matter to disclose the existence and 
nature of that interest at the start of a meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent.  The existence of a personal interest does not of 
itself prevent a Member from remaining in the meeting and voting.  
Members are not required to leave the meeting and refrain from 
voting unless their interest is also prejudicial.  There are certain 
prejudicial interests which the Code allows to be redefined as 
personal in specific circumstances.  A personal interest may arise not 
only from the business interests, employment and shareholdings of 
the Member above a certain threshold but also the impact of any 
matter on their wellbeing and that of their relatives, friends and any 
employers. 

 
 Suggested response – the Committee would welcome a definition of 

the terms “friend” and “wellbeing” in guidance issued by the Board, 
particularly given High Court endorsement of the definition of 
“wellbeing”, and believe that it is not appropriate that the Code itself 
should contain an interpretation of the meaning of these terms.  To 
enhance the integrity of the Code and to improve its practical 
application, it would be less cumbersome if Members were not 
required to declare interests which are shared by a substantial 
number of other inhabitants in an Authority’s area.  The question of 
public service interests relating to service on other public bodies has 
caused some confusion among parishes in Huntingdonshire since the 

13



inception of the Code, particularly as it is common for Members, in 
smaller communities, to be involved with other community bodies, 
either as a representative of the authority or in their own right.  The 
Board believe that the prevalence of Member involvement with public 
bodies is such that the current requirements of the Code place an 
onerous and ongoing responsibility on Members to declare their 
membership of other public bodies, particularly as many interests that 
arise from service on other public bodies will not be significant.  There 
should be no objection, in principle, to an individual serving on a 
number of public bodies and the fact that an issue being considered 
by one body may involve another body with which the Member is 
concerned should not necessarily indicate that the Members 
judgement of the public interest will be prejudiced.   In these 
circumstances, the Committee support the proposed new approach to 
Members who serve on other public bodies and the introduction of a 
new category of “public service interest” which would be subject to 
the prejudicial interest test.  Where a public service interest is not 
prejudicial, there will be no need to declare it at the meeting provided 
that it was properly recorded in the Members’ register of interests.  
Where a public service interest was prejudicial, it would need to be 
declared and the Member concerned would not be able to vote on the 
issue under discussion.  However, Members with prejudicial public 
service interests would be able to remain in the room and participate 
in debate but withdraw before any vote was taken. 

 
 Similarly, there is a third category of interest which covers 

memberships of charities and lobby groups.  As the Code of Conduct 
does not currently distinguish sufficiently between the types of 
personal interests that can arise the Committee may wish to endorse 
the view that public service interests and interests arising from 
membership of charities and lobby groups should only be prejudicial – 

 
♦  where the matter has a direct impact on the body 

concerned (for example a grant of money); 
♦  where the Member is involved in regulatory matters in a 

decision making capacity, for example, planning and 
licensing where it is generally accepted that particularly 
high standards of probity and transparency are required.   

  
 Where prejudicial interests arise from membership of charities and 

lobby groups, Members should be able to remain in the room and 
participate in debate but withdraw before any vote is taken. 

 
3.8 Prejudicial Interests 
 
 Question 22 – Should Members with a prejudicial interest in a 

matter under discussion be allowed to address the meeting 
before withdrawing?  

 
 Question 23 – Do you think Members with prejudicial public 

service interests should be allowed to contribute to the debate 
before withdrawing from the vote? 

 
 Summary - For an interest to be prejudicial, it must be likely to 

prejudice the Members judgement.  The interest must be likely to 
harm or impair the Members ability to judge the public interest.  
Members who have a prejudicial interest in a matter to be discussed 

14



must declare the nature and existence of the interests, leave the 
room and not be involved in nor seek to influence improperly, the 
decision.   

 
 Suggested response – the Code attempts to protect transparency by 

preventing Members from using their position to exert influence over 
decision making.  All Councillors have influence by virtue of their role 
and this influence would be brought to bear upon decisions if 
Members address a meeting in their personal capacity or were to 
remain in the meeting during the vote.  Whilst a Member may 
influence the decision, the Code must continue to ensure that that 
influence is not improper.  If a Member has a prejudicial interest 
he/she should not participate in the meeting.  The Committee may 
agree that there are sufficient avenues available for Members to 
communicate their constituents views to meetings in the event that 
they had a prejudicial interest in the matter under discussion. 

 
 In the event that a Member declares a prejudicial interest at a 

meeting, the Committee may wish to comment that as that Member is 
required to withdraw from the meeting, should there be a necessity 
for that person to declare the nature of their interest and in sufficient 
detail to identify that interest. 

 
3.9 Registration of Interests  
 
 Question 24 – Should Members employed in areas of sensitive 

employment, such as the security services, need to declare their 
occupation in the public register of interests?   

 
 Question 25 – Should Members be required to register 

membership of private clubs and organisations?  And if so, 
should it be limited to organisations within or near an authority’s 
area?   

 
 Summary – The Code requires Members to include in the Register of 

Members’ interests information about their employment and 
employer, including their personal and business address details.  
Issues around public access to this information have arisen where 
Members are employed in areas of sensitive employment, such as 
certain scientific research and the Special Armed Forces.  Public 
access to information about Members employment, may, given the 
security issues surrounding these areas of work, threaten the security 
and/or safety of the Member and their family.   

 
 Suggested response – The Committee support the inclusion of an 

extra provision in the Code to provide Members with a dispensation 
from publicly registering sensitive information about their 
employment.  Instead this information could be provided to the 
Monitoring Officer and would not be available to the public.  This 
confirms the practice adopted locally by the Monitoring Officer.  In 
respect of a requirement to register membership of private clubs and 
organisations, the Committee may wish to endorse the approach 
proposed by the Board that, for the sake of clarity and transparency, 
there should be an explicit requirement to register membership of 
private clubs and organisations regardless of their location, contrary 
to the view of the Board that the requirement only should apply to 
those within the authority’s area given the relationships and interests 
that can be fostered by and between Members through Members 

15



clubs and which can result in a significant body of influence in local 
government decision-making.   

 
3.10 Gifts and Hospitality 
 
 Question 26 – Should the Code of Conduct require that the 

Register of Gifts and Hospitality be made publicly available? 
 
 Question 27 – Should Members also need to declare offers of 

gifts and hospitality that are declined? 
 
 Question 28 – Should Members need to declare a series of gifts 

from the same source, even if these gifts do not individually 
meet the threshold for declaration?  How could we define this? 

 
 Question 29 – Is £25 an appropriate threshold for the declaration 

of gifts and hospitality? 
 
 Summary – A Member has to declare only those gifts or hospitality 

received in his or her capacity as a Member over the value of £25. 
 
 Suggested Response – The Code should continue to require the 

register of gifts and hospitality to be made publicly available.  
Contrary to the view of the Board, the Committee do not believe it 
necessary to declare offers of gifts and hospitality that have been 
declined.  In those circumstances where gifts come from the same 
source over a period of time and the cumulative value of the gifts is 
over £25, and whilst supporting the Board’s view that these gifts 
ought to be registered, the Committee might wish to comment that 
placing a duty on the Monitoring Officer to maintain a comprehensive 
record of such gifts would be onerous and difficult.  The Code should 
continue to recognise one off gifts only.  The Committee support the 
£25 limit as still being appropriate. 

 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 In the light of the foregoing summary of the Board’s consultation 

paper, the Committee is  
 
 RECOMMENDED 
 
  to approve the suggested responses to the consultation paper 

on behalf of the District Council. 
 
  
 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Standards Board for England Consultation Paper on the Review of 
the Code of Conduct for Members – January 2005. 
 
Contact Officer:  Christine Deller -  Democratic Services 
Manager,  (01480) 388007. 

16



 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE                  6th June 2005 
 
 

ETHICAL STANDARDS – IN YOUR HANDS 
(Report by the Director of Central Services & Monitoring Officer) 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to confirm which Members of the 

Committee will attend the Fourth Annual Assembly of Standards 
Committees Conference, which is to take place at the International 
Conference Centre (ICC) Birmingham on 5th and 6th September 
2005. 

 
1.2 Following the last meeting (Minute No 28 refers), five conference 

places have been reserved for the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of 
the Committee, a representative of the Opposition Group, an 
Independent Member and a Town/Parish Council representative (or 
their nominees).  

 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Members will recall that the conference provides an opportunity for 

Monitoring Officers, Members of Standards Committees and other 
local government professionals to discuss key issues and on this 
occasion the conference, to be entitled “In Your Hands”, will focus on 
the work of Standards Committees within local government and use 
the opportunity to  

 
♦ examine both good and bad practice;  
♦ identify areas for improvement within authorities; 
♦ look beyond the scope of the Standards Committee statutory 
 remit; 

♦ focus on the relationship between Members and their 
 communities;and 

♦ consider what further support and guidance is needed. 
 

2.2 The Rt Hon Nick Raynsford MP, Minister for Local and Regional 
Government is to open the conference by setting out his vision for 
local government. Sir Alistair Graham, Chair of the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life, will follow with a report on the Committee’s 
Tenth Enquiry and subsequent developments. Other speakers 
confirmed to attend include Jacquie Dean, Chief Executive of the 
London Borough of Waltham Forest, Tim Minogue, editor of Private 
Eye’s Rotten Boroughs column and Professor Gerry Stoker from the 
Institute for Political and Economic Governance at the University of 
Manchester. All will be taking part in the big debate asking, “Will the 
Public ever trust local government?” 

 
3. CONCLUSION 
 
 The Committee is requested to confirm the attendance of Members at 
 the Fourth Annual Assembly of Standards Committee Conference.  

 

Agenda Item 6

17



. 
 
 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 Leaflet detailing the content of the Fourth Annual Assembly of 

Standards Committees Conference. 
 
 Bulletin Number 23–Standards Board for England 
 
 Minutes of the Meeting of the Committee held on 10th March 2005. 

 
 
Contact Officer:   
 
Christine Deller 
Democratic Services Manager  
01480 388007 

18



Agenda Item 9

19

Document is Restricted



22

This page is intentionally left blank



23

Document is Restricted



28

This page is intentionally left blank



29

Document is Restricted



30

This page is intentionally left blank



31

Document is Restricted



58

This page is intentionally left blank


